
 

1 
 

Public comments regarding an agenda item, upon which a vote is to be taken, are allowed at board and committee 
meetings.  Individuals should, when possible, comment on proposals during Committee hearings when an agenda item is 
considered.  The Chair will allow public comment on an agenda item prior to a vote.  Comments shall be limited to 3 
minutes per person and shall be Germane to the issue under consideration.  Proponents and opponents should fill out a 
comment card and file it with the Executive Director prior to the meeting.  Cards will then be handed to the Chair for use 
during the appropriate comment period. 
 

     
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

THE ENGLAND AUTHORITY 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

November 20, 2025 
 

Members: ZEB WINSTEAD, CHAIR; O’DAY LAVERGNE, VICE-CHAIR; JAMAR GAILES, SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 

AGENDA 
* Additions to the agenda may be made by unanimous consent 

 
➢ Solicit and hear public comments on Agenda items. 

 
1. Motion to approve the minutes of September 16, 2025, Executive Committee meeting. 

2. Motion to approve the minutes of September 25, 2025, Executive Committee meeting. 

3. Motion to approve the minutes of November 12, 2025, Executive Committee meeting. 

 
THE ENGLAND AUTHORITY 
ADMIN/LEGAL COMMITTEE 

November 20, 2025 
 

Members: STEVEN MANSOUR, CHAIR; CHARLIE WEEMS, VICE-CHAIR  
Trey Crump, Joshua Dara, Sr., Jamar Gailes, Oday Lavergne, Myron Lawson, Jr., Joe McPherson, Patrick O’Quin, Zeb Winstead 

 
AGENDA 

* Additions to the agenda may be made by unanimous consent 

 
➢ Solicit and hear public comments on Agenda items. 

 
1. Motion to approve the minutes of October 23, 2025, Admin/Legal Committee meeting.  

2. Briefing on review of Millionaire lease. 

3. Review of the Court System, as well as introduction and discussion of the Airpark’s 5 Year Capital Improvement 
Program. 

4. Resolution by Chair, Zeb Winstead to enact EEIDD Ordinances 2-110 through 2-130, and to amend Ordinance 4-
2, to establish administrative court system, to provide for appointment of hearing officer, to provide for 
administrative adjudication, enforcement, and judicial review of EEIDD regulatory violations.   
 



 

2 
 

5. Motion by Commissioner Joe McPherson to amend EEIDD Ordinances Section 6-88(f) to provide for submission 
of a rolling five-year operating forecast and rolling five-year capital projects plan. 
 

6. Motion by Commissioner Oday Lavergne to amend EEIDD Ordinances Sections 2-56, 2-57, 2-58, 2-78, 2-105, 6-
88, 6-293, 6-321, 8-2, 8-30, 8-31 to provide for repeal and replacement of references to standing committees of 
the Board. 

 

THE ENGLAND AUTHORITY 
FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE 

November 20, 2025 
 

Members: JOE MCPHERSON, CHAIR; TREY CRUMP, VICE-CHAIR      
Joshua Dara, Sr., Jamar Gailes, Oday Lavergne, Myron Lawson, Jr., Steve Mansour, Patrick O’Quin, Charlie Weems, Zeb 

Winstead 
   

AGENDA 
* Additions to the agenda may be made by unanimous consent 

 
➢ Solicit and hear public comments on Agenda items. 
 

1. Motion to approve the minutes of October 23, 2025, Finance/Audit Committee meeting.  

2. To receive schedule of paid invoices for the month of October 2025.  
 
   

THE ENGLAND AUTHORITY 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

November 20, 2025 
 

Members: PATRICK O’QUIN, CHAIR; JOE MCPHERSON, VICE-CHAIR  
Trey Crump, Joshua Dara, Sr., Jamar Gailes, Myron Lawson, Jr., Oday Lavergne, Steven Mansour, Charlie Weems, Zeb Winstead 

 

AGENDA 
* Additions to the agenda may be made by unanimous consent 

 

➢ Solicit and hear public comments on Agenda items. 
 

1. Motion to approve the minutes of October 23, 2025, Economic Development Committee meeting.  

2. Motion to authorize the Executive Director to execute a lease between EEIDD and Sol Powerlines, LLC, for 
building #1433 located at 2109 Frank Luke Blvd. 

 

                                                            

THE ENGLAND AUTHORITY 
CAPITAL PROJECT COMMITTEE   

November 20, 2025 
 

Members: CHARLIE WEEMS, CHAIR; JOSHUA DARA, SR., VICE-CHAIR 
Trey Crump, Jamar Gailes, Oday Lavergne, Myron Lawson, Jr., Oday Lavergne, Steve Mansour, Joe McPherson, Zeb Winstead 

 



 

3 
 

AGENDA 
* Additions to the agenda may be made by unanimous consent 

 

➢ Solicit and hear public comments on Agenda items. 
 

1. Motion to approve the minutes of October 23, 2025, Capital Project Committee meeting.  

2. Motion to adopt resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute Sponsor/State Agreement No. H.016643 
between the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development and the EEIDD for the South Ramp 
Expansion & Taxiway Realignment in the amount of $1,000,000.00 (One Million Dollars and Zero Cents). 

3. Motion to authorize Executive Director to execute firefighting contract between EEIDD and Centerra Group, LLC, 
to provide firefighting services for England Airpark and Alexandria International Airport. 

4. Motion to authorize Executive Director to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Rapides Parish 
Sheriff’s Office and the EEIDD for the transfer of two EEIDD surplus vehicles. 

5. Motion authorizing the Executive Director to accept the lowest responsible bid from (Vendor/Company) in the 
amount of ($xxx,xxx) for the purchase of new terminal seating, and to execute all necessary documents thereto.  

6. Review updates on Capital Projects.  

 



 

 

THE ENGLAND AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Zeb Winstead, Chair               Myron Lawson, Jr. 

Oday Lavergne, Vice-Chair                Steve Mansour 

Jamar Gailes, Secretary/Treasurer               Joe McPherson 

Trey Crump                Patrick O’Quin 

Joshua Dara, Sr.                       Charlie Weems 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 20, 2025 

England Authority Board Room 

AGENDA 

 

Public comments regarding an agenda item, upon which a vote is to be taken, are allowed at board and committee meetings. 
Individuals should, when possible, comment on proposals during Committee hearings when an agenda item is considered. The 
Chair will allow public comment on an agenda item prior to a vote. Comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per person and shall be 
Germane to the issue under consideration.  Proponents and opponents should fill out a comment card and file it with the Executive 
Director prior to the meeting. Cards will then be handed to the Chair for use during the appropriate comment period. 

 
A. Call to Order    
B. Invocation 
C. Pledge of Allegiance 
D. Roll Call 
E. Public Comments or Questions 
F. Active Items 
 

1. Motion to approve the minutes of October 23, Regular Board meeting.  

2. Motion to amend EEIDD Ordinances Section 6-88(f) to provide for submission of a rolling five-year operating forecast and 
rolling five-year capital projects plan. 

3. Motion to amend EEIDD Ordinances Sections 2-56, 2-57, 2-58, 2-78, 2-105, 6-88, 6-293, 6-321, 8-2, 8-30, 8-31 to provide 
for repeal and replacement of references to standing committees of the Board. 

4. Motion to adopt resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute Sponsor/State Agreement No. H.016643 
between the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development and the EEIDD for the South Ramp 
Expansion & Taxiway Realignment in the amount of $1,000,000.00 (One Million Dollars and Zero Cents). 

5. Motion to authorize Executive Director to execute firefighting contract between EEIDD and Centerra Group, LLC, 
to provide firefighting services for England Airpark and Alexandria International Airport. 

6. Motion to authorize Executive Director to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Rapides Parish 
Sheriffs Office and the EEIDD for the transfer of two EEIDD surplus vehicles. 

7. Motion authorizing the Executive Director to accept the lowest responsible bid from (Vendor/Company) in the amount 
of ($xxx,xxx) for the purchase of new terminal seating, and to execute all necessary documents thereto. (Bids to be 
received the day of the Board Meeting. Information will be updated to present at the Board Meeting.) 



 

 

8. Motion to authorize the Executive Director to execute a lease between EEIDD and Sol Powerlines, LLC, for 
building #1433 located at 2109 Frank Luke Blvd. 

9. Final adoption of Resolution to enact EEIDD Ordinances 2-110 through 2-130, and to amend Ordinance 4-2, to 
establish administrative court system, to provide for appointment of hearing officer, to provide for administrative 
adjudication, enforcement, and judicial review of EEIDD regulatory violations.   

10. Motion to enter into contractual agreement with Bloom Golf Management for Oak Wing management, effective 
January 5, 2026. 

11. Enter Executive Session for discussion of character, professional competency of Executive Director, establishing an 
Annual Rating and Performance Evaluation form regarding same. La. R.S. 42:17(A)(1). 

 
                                                                             ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

(By unanimous vote) 
 
G.  Comments by Legal Counsel 

H.  Comments or Questions by Commissioners 

I.  Comments by Executive Director 

J.  Staff Reports –  1) Financial 
 2) Air Traffic 
 3) Economic Development/Operations 
 

K.  Public Comments or Questions 

L. Adjourn  



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

November 12, 2025 
 

 
The regular meeting of the Executive Committee of the England Economic and Industrial Development District 
was held on Wednesday, November 12, 2025, at 1412 Centre Court, Suite 504, Alexandria, LA. 
 
The Chair, Mr. Zeb Winstead, called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
The following were present: Mr. Zeb Winstead, Mr. Oday Lavergne and Mr. Jamar Gailes. 
 
Others present were Mr. Ralph Hennessy and Matt Nowlin, Legal Counsel. 
 
Discussion of Administrative Court System and Airpark’s 5-Year Capital Improvement Program. 
 
Discussion of Committee and Committee Structures. 
 
Discussion of Board Meeting agenda items. 
 
Update on Airpark activity from Executive Director. 
 
Update on Oak Wing Management Contract selection. 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Winstead adjourned the Executive Committee. 
 
 
 
       
                       

                                                          Mr. Zeb Winstead, Committee Chair 
                                                                   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

           England Economic & Industrial Development District 



 

 

ADMIN/LEGAL COMMITTEE 
THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

October 23, 2025 
 
 
The regular meeting of the Admin/Legal Committee of the England Economic and Industrial Development 
District was held on Thursday, October 23, 2025, in the England Authority Board Room, 1611 Arnold Drive, 
Alexandria, Louisiana. 
 
The Committee Chair, Mr. Steven Mansour, requested roll call. 
 
The following were present: Mr. Steven Mansour, Mr. Charlie Weems, Mr. Trey Crump, Mr. Joshua Dara, Sr., Mr. 
Myron Lawson, Jr., Mr. Joe McPherson, Mr. Patrick O’Quin, Mr. Zeb Winstead 
 
Absent: Mr. Jamar Gailes, Mr. Oday Lavergne 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2025, ADMIN/LEGAL COMMITTEE 
MEETING. 
Motion by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Second by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., to approve the minutes of the September 
25, 2025, Admin/Legal Committee meeting.   
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
Mr. Mansour stated that there were no further items to discuss and asked if there were any public comments or 
additions to the agenda. 
 
There being none, Mr. Mansour adjourned the Admin/Legal Committee. 
 
Chair, Mr. Zeb Winstead, called upon Commissioner Joe McPherson, Chair of the Finance/Audit Committee. 
 
 
 
                                                      

                                                  Mr. Steven Mansour, Committee Chair 
                                                                ADMIN/LEGAL COMMITTEE  

England Economic & Industrial Development District 



FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT      

October 23, 2025 
 

The regular meeting of the Finance/Audit Committee of the England Economic and Industrial Development District 
was held on Thursday, October 23, 2025, in the England Authority Board Room, 1611 Arnold Drive, Alexandria, 
Louisiana. 
 
 The Committee Chair, Mr. Joe McPherson, requested a roll call. 
 
The following were present: Mr. Joe McPherson, Mr. Trey Crump, Mr. Joshua Dara, Sr., Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., 
Mr. Steven Mansour, Mr. Patrick O’Quin, Mr. Charlie Weems, Mr. Zeb Winsted  
 
Absent: Mr. Jamar Gailes, Mr. Oday Lavergne 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2025, FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING. 
Motion by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Second by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., to approve minutes of the September 25, 2025, 
Finance/Audit Committee meeting. 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
TO RECEIVE SCHEDULE OF PAID INVOICES FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2025. 
The Commissioners reviewed the schedule of paid invoices for the month of September 2025.  There were no 
questions or comments upon reviewing. 
 
Mr. McPherson stated that there were no further items to discuss and asked if there were any public comments or 
additions to the agenda. 
 
There being none, Mr. McPherson adjourned the Finance Committee. 
 
Chair, Mr. Zeb Winstead, called upon Commissioner Patrick O’Quin, Chair of the Economic Development 
Committee. 
 
       
                       

                                                          Mr. Joe McPherson, Committee Chair 
                                                                   FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE 

           England Economic & Industrial Development District 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

October 23, 2025 
 

 
The regular meeting of the Economic Development Committee of the England Economic and Industrial 
Development District was held on Thursday, October 23, 2025, in the England Authority Board Room, 1611 
Arnold Drive, Alexandria, Louisiana. 
 
The Chair, Mr. Patrick O’Quin, requested a roll call. 
 
The following were present: Mr. Patrick O’Quin, Mr. Joe McPherson, Mr. Trey Cump, Mr. Joshua Dara, Sr., Mr. 
Myron Lawson, Jr., Mr. Steven Mansour, Mr. Charlie Weems, Mr. Zeb Winstead. 
 
Absent: Mr. Jamar Gailes, Mr. Oday Lavergne 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2025, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING. 
Motion by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Second by Mr. Steve Mansour, to approve minutes of September 25, 2025, 
Economic Development Committee meeting. 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
The Chair, Mr. O’Quin, stated that there were no further items to discuss and next called for any additions or public 
comments. 
 
There being none, Mr. O’Quin adjourned the Economic Development Committee. 
 
Mr. Zeb Winstead called on Mr. Weems, Chair of the Capital Projects Committee. 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________________________ 
Mr. Patrick O’Quin, Committee Chair 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
England Economic and Industrial Development District 



1 

Capital Projects Committee 

October 23 ,2025 

 

                                                              CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE 
THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

October 23, 2025 
 
 

The regular meeting of the Capital Projects Committee of the England Economic and Industrial Development 
District was held on Thursday, October 23, 2025, in the England Authority Board Room, 1611 Arnold Drive, 
Alexandria, Louisiana. 
 
The Committee Chair, Mr. Charlie Weems, requested a roll call. 
 
The following were present: Mr. Charlie Weems, Mr. Joshua Dara, Sr., Mr. Trey Crump, Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., 
Mr. Steven Mansour, Mr. Joe McPherson, Mr. Patrick O’Quin, Mr. Zeb Winsted. 
 
Absent: Mr. Jamar Gailes, Mr. Oday Lavergne 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2025, CAPITAL PROJECT COMMITTEE 
MEETING. 
Motion by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Second by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., to approve the minutes of September 25, 
2025, Capital Project Committee meeting. 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE 
SPONSOR/STATE AGREEMENT NO. H.016715 BETWEEN THE LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION AND DEVELOPMENT AND THE EEIDD FOR THE RUNWAY 18 EXTENSION-
APPROACH DESIGN IN THE AMOUNT OF $65,035.00 (SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND, THIRTY-FIVE 
DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS). 
Motion by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., Second by Mr. Zeb Winstead to adopt resolution authorizing the 
Executive Director to execute Sponsor/State Agreement No. H.016715 between the Louisiana Department of 
Transportation and Development and the EEIDD for the Runway 18 Extension-Approach Design in the 
amount of $65,035.00 (Sixty-Five Thousand, Thirty-Five Dollars and Zero Cents). 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION REQUESTING LADOTD, DIVISION OF AVIATION, TO 
PROVIDE ASSISTANCE FOR CONSTRUCTION OF VARIOUS AIRPORT RELATED 
PROJECTS AT ALEXANDRIA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT. 
Motion by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., Second by Mr. Zeb Winstead to adopt resolution requesting LADOTD, 
Division of Aviation, to provide assistance for construction of various airport related projects at Alexandria 
International Airport. 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
MOTION TO AUTHORIZE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ADOPT WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 15 
WITH W. D. SCHOCK COMPANY, INC. FOR THE NEIGHBORHOOD NOISE MITIGATION PROGRAM. 



2 

Capital Projects Committee 

October 23 ,2025 

 

Motion by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Second by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., to authorize Executive Director to adopt 
Work Authorization Number 15 with W. D. Schock Company, Inc. for the Neighborhood Noise Mitigation 
Program. 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
MOTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK CONTRACT 
WITH DEBORAH MURPHY LAGOS & ASSOCIATES, LLC FOR PART 150 NOISE 
PROGRAM COORDINATOR. 
Motion by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Second by Mr. Patrick O’Quin, authorizing Executive Director to execute work 
contract with Deborah Murphy Lagos & Associates, LLC for Part 150 Noise Program Coordinator. 
 
On vote, motion carried. 
 
There being no further items to discuss, Mr. Weems adjourned the Capital Project Committee 
 
 

________________________________________________ 
Mr. Charlie Weems, Chair 

CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE 
England Economic and Industrial Development District 



 

 

 
OAK WING MANAGEMENT CONTRACT SELECTION COMMITTEE 

THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
November 3, 2025 

 
 
The meeting of the Oak Wing Management Contract Selection Committee of the England Economic and 
Industrial Development District was held on Monday, November 3, 2025, in the England Authority 
Conference, 1611 Arnold Drive, Alexandria, Louisiana. 
 
The following were present: Mr. Charlie Weems, Chair; Mr. Randy Ponthie; Mr. Corky Yates; Mr. Frank Brame; Mr. 
Sam Mahfouz, Mr. Ralph Hennessy; Mr. David Broussard; Mr. Scott Gammel 
 
Call to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Introduction and remarks by Mr. Charlie Weems.  
 
Presentations by Elite Golf Management and then Bloom Golf Management. 
 
Entered into Executive Session at 12:30 p.m. to discuss character, professional competency of Bloom Golf 
Management and Elite Golf Management, regarding submitted proposals. La. R.S. 42:17(A)(1), La. R.S. 
39:1595(B)(7) (formerly La. R.S. 39:1593(C)(2)(c)). Came out of Executive Session at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Motion made by Mr. Sam Mahfouz, Second by Mr. Frank Brame, to recommend entering into negotiations with 
Bloom Golf Management. On vote, motion carried. 
 
With no further business to discuss, meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________ 
Mr. Charlie Weems, Committee Chair 

OAK WING MANAGEMENT CONTRACT SELECTION COMMITTEE 
England Economic & Industrial Development District 



THE ENGLAND ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR SESSION 

OCTOBER 23, 2025 
 

 
 
The England Economic and Industrial Development District met in Regular Session in the England Airpark Board 
Room, 1611 Arnold Drive, Alexandria, Louisiana, on Thursday, October 23, 2025. 
 
Mr. Zeb Winstead, Chair of the England Authority, called the meeting to order at 4:13 p.m. 
 
The England Economic and Industrial Development District was duly convened as the governing authority of said 
District by Mr. Zeb Winstead, Chair, who stated that the England Economic and Industrial Development District 
was ready for the transaction of business.    
 
Present: Chair, Mr. Zeb Winstead, Mr. Trey Crump, Mr. Joshua Dara, Sr., Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., Mr. Steve 
Mansour, Joe McPherson, Mr. Patrick O’Quin, Mr. Charlie Weems . 
 
Absent: Mr. Jamar Gailes, Mr. Oday Lavergne 
 

The invocation was led by Mr. Joshua Dara, Sr.  and the Pledge of Allegiance by Mr. Zeb Winstead. 
 

Also present were members of the England Authority staff: Mr. Ralph Hennessy, Executive Director, Mr. David 
Broussard, Deputy Director, Ms. Summer Steiner, Director of Finance and Human Resources, and Mr. Matt 
Nowlin, Legal Counsel. 
 
Chair, Mr. Zeb Winstead, asked if there were any public comments or questions. Hearing none, Mr. Winstead 
proceeded with the action items. 

  
MOTION TO APPROVE ACTIVE AGENDA ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 AND  6 AS CONSENT.  
Motion by Mr. Steven Mansour, second by Mr. Myron Lawson, Jr., to approve active items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 
as consent. The Chair called for any comments from the Board or public. There being none, a vote was called, 
and motion carried. 
 
UPDATE ON OAK WING MANAGEMENT CONTRACT SELECTION 
Mr. Charlie Weems gave an update on the Oak Wing Management Contract Selection. Only two serious inquiries 
submitted. Interviews set up for Monday, November 3 at 10 a.m. It is the Committees intention to present a 
recommendation at the November meeting with estimated starting date of new or current firm to begin on 
January 1, 2026. 

 
Comments by Legal Counsel: Mr. Matt Nowlin reminded Commissioners that ethics training and sexual 
harassment training needs to be completed by December 31, 2025. Update on CJT Bayou Cuisine litigation. 
Anticipated update probably in November. Depositions to be completed by the middle of November. Trail date 
set for May 5-6, 2026. 
 
Questions by Commissioners: There were no questions or comments from Commissioners. 
  
Comments by Executive Director: Mr. Hennessy informed Commissioners about an event taking place at 
the Community Center on Friday, October 31 at 10 a.m. Flyer was distributed via email and hard copy placed 
at each Commissioners station. Updated Commissioners with November and December meeting dates 



Board of Commissioners Regular Session 
October 23, 2025 
Page 2 

 
 
adjusted due to holidays. Planning to have updated head shots and group photo at the November meeting. 
Recognized Jamal, with Delta Airlines, for the station being named station of the month for August. 
 
Staff Reports:   

 
1) Financial: Ms. Summer Steiner through three months we are 10% over budget on revenues and 5 ½% 

below on expenses. Audit is complete. Draft report has been received. Nick is unable to make the November 
meeting but will possibly attend in December to give his presentation. Everything for bank transition has 
been set up. 

 
2) Air Traffic: Mr. Ralph Hennessy reported that traffic is up and fuel sales are up. For the month of 

September, 1.5 million gallons is a record. Prior record was 1.2 million gallons. 
 

3) Economic Development/Operations: Mr. David Broussard reported on Louisiana Economic 
Development revamp. Allocated $150 million for site readiness. Money is available now. Sitting in on 
webinar next week to learn more of the weeds about it. Grant is highly competitive. Must spend money in 
nine months. Website is called Louisiana Fast Sites. Ucore COO was in town with a potential plant 
manager they are trying to recruit from out of state.  
. 
Public Comments or Questions: None   
 

There being no further business, Mr. Zeb Winstead adjourned the meeting at 4:38 p.m. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Zeb Winstead, Chair 
England Economic and Industrial Development District 
Board of Commissioners 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Jamar Gailes, Secretary/Treasurer 
England Economic and Industrial Development District 
Board of Commissioners 



 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 

DATE:  
 
 
TITLE: 
 

 
EXPLANATION: 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED:  FINANCIAL/BUDGET INFORMATION: 

  Document/Proposal Attached  Title:  
  Term Sheet Attached  Number:  
  Financials Attached  Balance of Account:  
  N/A  Amount of Expense:  

  Amount Remaining:  
   

 
SUBMITTED BY:  COMMITTEE: 
Executive Director     Admin/Legal 
Deputy Director, Airport & Capital Projects     Finance/Audit 
Deputy Director, England Airpark     Economic Development 
Director of Finance & Human Resources     Capital Projects 
Commissioner    
    

 



EEIDD LEASE INFORMATION FORM 

1. Lessee:  SolScapes, LLC. 
2. Name:     

Address:  1301 Wall Street Lecompte, LA 71346 
Tax ID:   

3.  Premises: 
Building No.  1433 
Square Ft.      6,352 
Address:        2109 Frank Luke Blvd 
Movables:      N/A 

4. Term: 
Number of Years: 3 
Beginning Date:  January 1, 2026 
Ending Date: December 31, 2029 

5. Option to Renew: 
Number of Options: 2 
Term of Option: one (1) year 

6. Use of Premises:  Mechanic shop 
7. Rental: 

Base Rent: $4.50 sq ft or $28,584.00 annually/$2,382 monthly 
Percentage Rent (If applicable): Annual CPIU  

8. Security Deposit:  $4,764.00 or irrevocable letter of credit 
9. Insurance:   Amount of Liability Insurance Required:  $1,000,000.00 

 Workers Comp: Yes 

 Property: Yes 

Auto: Yes 

10. Utilities:  Lessee 
11. Employees:     
12. Maintenance: Lessor will maintain the foundation, roof, and structure.   
13. Improvements:  

 
 
 
Signed: __________________________                       ____________________________ 

        Executive Director                                               Deputy Director, England Airpark 

 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

DATE: 

TITLE: 

EXPLANATION: 

ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED: FINANCIAL/BUDGET INFORMATION: 
  Document/Proposal Attached Title:  
  Term Sheet Attached Number: 
  Financials Attached Balance of Account: 
  N/A Amount of Expense: 

Amount Remaining: 

SUBMITTED BY: COMMITTEE: 
Executive Director   Executive 
Deputy Director, Airport & Capital Projects   Admin/Legal 
Deputy Director, England Airpark   Finance/Audit 
Director of Finance & Human Resources   Economic Development 
Commissioner   Capital Projects 

























 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 

DATE:  
 
 
TITLE: 
 

 
EXPLANATION: 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED:  FINANCIAL/BUDGET INFORMATION: 

  Document/Proposal Attached  Title:  
  Term Sheet Attached  Number:  
  Financials Attached  Balance of Account:  
  N/A  Amount of Expense:  

  Amount Remaining:  
   

 
SUBMITTED BY:  COMMITTEE: 
Executive Director     Executive 
Deputy Director, Airport & Capital Projects     Admin/Legal 
Deputy Director, England Airpark     Finance/Audit 
Director of Finance & Human Resources     Economic Development 
Commissioner     Capital Projects 
    

 



  

 

 

GOVERNMENT NOTICE FOR HANDLING PROPOSALS 

This proposal shall not be disclosed outside the Government and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed – in whole or in part – for any purpose other than to evaluate the proposal. 
If, however, a contract is awarded to as a result of – or in connection with the submission of this data, the Government shall have the right to duplicate, use, or disclose the data to the 
extent provided in the resulting contract. This restriction does not limit the Government’s right to use information contained in the data if it is obtained from another source without 
restriction. The data subject to this restriction is contained in all of the following sheets. (Jan 2004) (FAR 52-215-1(e)). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Offeror does not waive and reserves 
all rights to assert any confidential data provided herein that is incorporated into a resulting contract is exempt from public disclosure pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(4). 

 

 

Management Plan 
Structural/Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
(ARFF) Services Qualifications 
September 5, 2025 
 
 
SUBMITTED TO:  
England Economic & Industrial Development District (EEIDD) 
England Authority Administration Building 
1611 Arnold Drive 
Alexandria, LA 71303 
ATTN: Kate Wells  
Phone: (318) 427-6405 
E-mail: kwells@englandairpark.org 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  
Centerra Group, LLC 
13530 Dulles Technology Drive, Suite 500 
Herndon, VA 20171 
ATTN: Lisa Bellich, Contracts Manager 
Phone: (703) 673-5106 
E-mail: lisa.bellich@constellis.com 
 
 
DUNS: 073891921 
CAGE: 1D415 

 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary i 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Table of Contents 

1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................... 1 
2 Staffing Plan ..................................................................................................................... 1 

2.1 Key Personnel Assignments/Responsibilities: Include a one-page resume for each 
key personnel who would be assigned to provide services at the Airport as well as 
the Corporate Management Representative. ............................................................. 1 

2.2 Employment Standards: Describe the organization's process for hiring employees ... 9 
2.3 Pay and Benefits: Demonstrate that the pay and benefit structure will enable 

Proposer to attract and retain highly qualified employees. ....................................... 10 
2.4 Sample Work Schedule: Detail the number of personnel and shift assignments 

required to service the contract and cover for vacation and sick time....................... 12 
3 Operations Plan .............................................................................................................. 13 

3.1 Describe the Proposer’s Structural/ARFF Training Curriculum and Recordkeeping . 13 
3.2 Describe the safety and training programs the organization has for its employees to 

ensure compliance with Part 139 and PIAL Standards. ........................................... 14 
3.3 Provide copies of Incident and Report writing forms to be used by Proposer ........... 17 
3.4 Provide list of additional services for the EEIDD’s consideration, which shall be 

provided at no additional cost to enhance current services. ..................................... 17 
4 Personnel Policies ......................................................................................................... 18 

4.1 Equal Employment Opportunity Practices: Describe the organization’s efforts to have 
a work force that is ethnically and culturally representative of the local population... 18 

4.2 Sexual Harassment Policy: Describe the organization's policy for responding to 
instances of sexual harassment by members of its organization. ............................. 19 

5 Project Approach & Transition Plan ............................................................................. 20 
APPENDIX A: Centerra Benefits Plans and Coverage ............................................................ 1 
APPENDIX B: Sample Copies of Incident Report Forms ........................................................ 1 
 

  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary ii 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

List of Figures 
Figure 1. Candidate Minimum Requirements in accordance with the SOW ................................ 9 
Figure 2 Contract Pay Rate .......................................................................................................10 
Figure 3. Medical Benefits Plan Summary .................................................................................11 
Figure 4. Sample Shift Work Schedule ......................................................................................12 
Figure 5. Staffing Matrix ............................................................................................................13 
Figure 6. Structural and ARFF Training Curriculum ...................................................................13 
Figure 7. Safety and Training Programs ....................................................................................16 
 
 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 1 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

1 INTRODUCTION  

The England Economic and Industrial Development District requires a highly qualified and 
experienced contractor to provide comprehensive Structural and Aircraft Rescue and Fire 
Fighting Services (ARFF) at Alexandria International Airpark located in Alexandria, Louisiana. 
Services must be provided in accordance with all applicable Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA), National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), Occupational Safety and Health Agency 
(OSHA), State of Louisiana and Statement of Work (SOW) standards and regulations for fire 
protection, prevention, rescue, and basic life support emergency medical services.  

Centerra has been proudly serving as the incumbent contractor providing structural/ARFF 
services for over 14 years to EEIDD/England Airpark. Combined with over 60 years successfully 
providing similar services, relevant in size in scope, to both the commercial sector as well as the 
U.S. Federal, State, and local governments, Centerra has the depth and breadth of experience 
to offer the precise ARFF and Structural and Emergency Management services required in this 
solicitation. 

 

Centerra has demonstrated experience at managing the complex operations of an Index D 
airport and our firefighters know the critical role they play in ensuring a safe and successful 
operation. Our fire department also maintains a Property Insurance Association of Louisiana 
(PIAL/ISO) (ISO) Fire Rating of 2 based on a scale of 1 being the best and 10 the worst. We 
further detail our experience and ability to meet the RFP minimum qualification requirement in 
Section D –Additional Information that is included with our bid submission.   

2 STAFFING PLAN 

2.1 Key Personnel Assignments/Responsibilities: Include a one-page resume for 
each key personnel who would be assigned to provide services at the 
Airport as well as the Corporate Management Representative. 

Under the existing work requirements for the England Airpark program, Centerra Group is fully 
staffed with 1 full-time Fire Chief, 1, full-time A/Chief of Training, 3 Shift Captains, and16 full-
time/part-time Firefighter Driver/Operators. The resumes below reflect our assigned key 
personnel that include the Fire Chief, Assistant Chief/Training Officer, and 3 Shift Captains. 

All contract proposed key personnel are performing on the current program and bring directly 
relevant and proven experience—ensuring continuity of operations and existing leadership 
providing structural/ARFF services at England Airpark.   



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 2 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Corporate Management and Key Personnel 
Corporate Management Representative (Director of Fire and EMS Operations) – Chief Thomas Smith 
Chief Smith brings over 43 years of directly relevant experience in Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Services (ARFF). He is 
well versed in Air Force Instruction 32-2001, DOD 60-6055, and AFOSH, as well NFPA and OSHA rules and regulations. He 
currently serves as the Director of the Fire & Emergency Services Division overseeing multiple ARFF and Emergency 
Services programs, including Structural/ARFF Services for Alexandria International Airpark and England Airpark today. 
Fire Chief – Chief Kevin Kees  
Chief Kees brings over 21 years of fire and emergency services experience to the England Airpark ARFF program. He has 
over 14 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) with over 11 years in a supervisory 
capacity as the current Fire Chief and former Assistant Fire Chief and Shift Captain. He also has 7 years serving the Rapides 
Fire District 7/Ruby Kolin as Fire Chief and a Firefighter/ Driver Operator. He has completed coursework in Fire Science from 
LSU-E. Chief Kees resides in Pineville, LA and is able to respond when off duty from his primary residence, which is located 
20 minutes (15 miles) normal drive time from EEIDD. 
Assistant Chief/Training Officer – Kevyn Martin  
Mr. Martin has 15 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) with over 5 years of 
supervisory experience as the Assistant Fire Chief / Training Officer and Shift Captain. He has over 9 years of experience 
serving as a Firefighter / Driver Operator in support of the ARFF program at England Airpark. He also has over 5 years of 
experience as a Firefighter / Driver Operator for the Ruby Kolin Fire District 7, in Pineville, LA. Mr. Martin resides in Dry 
Prong, LA and is able to respond when off duty from their primary residence, which is located 24 minutes (16.2 miles) normal 
drive time from EEIDD. 
Shift Captain – Bradley Eubanks 
Mr. Eubanks has over 5 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) as a Shift Captain 
and Firefighter / Driver Operator. He also has over 3 years of experience serving as Part-time Firefighter / Driver Operator for 
the Ball Fire Department in LA. He currently serves as a Shift Captain for England Airpark supervising daily ARFF operations 
and a team of firefighters as well as emergency operations.   
Shift Captain – Christopher Ward 
Mr. Ward has over 4 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) as a Shift Captain and 
Firefighter / Driver Operator. Additionally, he has over 22 years of experience as a Firefighter for the Cotile Volunteer Fire 
Department in LA. He currently serves as a Shift Captain for England Airpark, overseeing a team of 5 firefighters and 
supervising daily ARFF and emergency operations. 
Shift Captain – Mitchell Schumacher 
Mr. Schumacher has 10 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) as a Shift Captain 
and Firefighter/Driver Operator. He also has 11 years of experience as a Firefighter, Driver Operator, and EMT for the Ruby 
Kolin Fire District 7 in LA. He currently serves as a Shift Captain for England Airpark overseeing a team of 5 firefighters and 
supervising daily ARFF and emergency operations. 

  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 3 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Corporate Management Representative – Chief Thomas Smith 
Director of Operations – Chief Thomas Smith  

Summary of Experience 
Chief Smith brings over 43 years of directly relevant experience in Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Services (ARFF). He is 
well versed in Air Force Instruction 32-2001, DOD 60-6055, and AFOSH, as well NFPA and OSHA rules and regulations. He 
currently serves as the Director of the Fire & Emergency Services Division overseeing multiple ARFF and Emergency 
Services programs, including Structural/ARFF Services for Alexandria International Airpark and England Airpark today. 

Certifications 
• IFSAC Accredited: PRO BOARD; Fire Officer I, II, III, 

IV; Fire Instructor I, II, III; Plans Examiner I & II; 
Firefighter I, II; Airport Firefighter; ARFF Vehicle 
Technician; Haz Mat Technician; Haz Mat IC WMD; 
Rescue Technician; Public Telecommunicator I, II  

• Complete NIMS series  
• ALS Paramedic/EMT  
• National Certified Dive Rescue 
• MSA Certified Care Technician 
• Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) Incident Commander 

Work Experience 
October 2023 – Present 1 year, 11 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, Director Fire & Emergency Services Division 
Chief Smith is responsible for overall direction and management of the Centerra Fire and Emergency services division. He 
oversees 11 ARFF and Emergency Services programs with 532 Firefighter and EMS personnel. These include the 
Structural/ARFF Services for Alexandria International Airpark and England Airpark, CIAA ARFF and EMS, Lockheed Martin 
Fire and EMS for USAF Plant #6, and Port of Moses Lake Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting. He manages and directs the 
emergency services staff and programs to implement a comprehensive strategy for efficient safe and effective Fire and 
Emergency Services. He provides leadership and communicates through regular meetings and annual site visits and audits.  
May 2014 – October 2023 9 years, 5 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, Fire Chief, Cape Canaveral Space Force Station, FL 
Chief Smith was responsible for all fire protection, emergency services, and Emergency Management at Cape Canaveral 
Space Force Station (CCSFS)/USAF Eastern Range. This included airfield, structural, space lift, and Military Port operations 
on the range. He ensured Fire Protection flight operated within, and corresponded to all USAF, NFPA, AFOSH, DOD, and 
FAA directives and guidelines. He ensured airfield ground support operations operate safely, passenger safety issues were 
resolved safely and efficiently, and that FES flights operated within budgetary confines efficiently and effectively. He also 
oversaw and provided Command and Control, Tactics and Strategies, Disaster Control, and procedures at CCSFS. 
July 2013 – May 2014 10 months 
CSR/45th Space Wing, Fire/Security Chief, Patrick AFB, FL 
Chief Smith managed all fire protection, emergency services, and security for a DOD USAF contract at Ascension Island 
Airfield/Monitoring Range. He oversaw all airfield, structural, and other FES incidents and security. He ensured Fire Protection 
flights operated/corresponded to all USAF, NFPA, AFOSH, DOD, and FAA directives and guidelines. He also ensured airfield 
ground support operations operated safely and FES flights operated within budgetary confines. He also oversaw and provided 
Command and Control, Tactics and Strategies, Disaster Control, and procedures at Ascension Island Air Force Station. 
April 2012 – July 2013 1 year, 3 months 
Chugach/PACAF, Fire/Security Chief, Wake Island, HI 
Chief Smith was responsible for all fire protection and emergency services of a multi-billion dollar DOD USAF contract for 
Wake Island Airfield/ Missile Range. He oversaw all airfield, structural, and other FES related incidents on the island. He 
ensured the Fire Protection flight operates within, and corresponds to all NFPA, AFOSH and DOD directives and guidelines. 
He also ensured the efficient and safe procedures of all airfield ground support operations and passenger safety issues.  

Additional Relevant Work Experience 
• January 1982 – April 2012; U.S. Air Force – 22nd Air Force Command, Fire Chief – Deployed Base Operations, various 

locations (30 years, 4 months) 
Educational Background 

• Fire Administration, West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV, 1993 
• Paramedic, AAS Paramedic, West Virginia Northern Community College, Wheeling, WV, 1990 
• Fire Science Administration, Community College of the Air Force, Maxwell, AL, 1987 
• Fire Science, Central Texas University, Killeen, TX, 1985 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 4 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Fire Chief – Kevin Kees 
Fire Chief – Kevin Kees 
Summary of Experience 

Chief Kees brings over 21 years of fire and emergency services experience to the England Airpark ARFF program. He has 
over 14 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) with over 11 years in a supervisory 
capacity as the current Fire Chief and former Assistant Fire Chief and Shift Captain. He also has 7 years serving Rapides Fire 
District 7/Ruby Kolin as Fire Chief and a Firefighter/ Driver Operator. He has completed coursework in Fire Science at LSU-E.  

Certifications/Training 
• IFSAC Accredited: Hazardous Materials Awareness, Operations, and Hazardous Materials Incident Commander; Firefighter 

I and II; Airport Firefighter; Fire Instructor I, II, and III; Fire Officer I, II, III, and IV; Fire Service Inspector I and II 
• NIMS ICS 100, 200, 300, 400, 700, 706, 800 
• G-0191 ICS /EOC Interface  
• Louisiana Fire and Emergency Training Academy Lead Skills Evaluator (IFSAC Testing) 
• NREMT / LBEMS EMT-Basic 
• American Heart Association Instructor - BLS Provider CPR/AED, HeartSaver First Aid CPR/AED, HeartSaver Pediatric First 

Aid CPR/AED 
• Qualified on all fire apparatus currently assigned at EEIDD/AEX 

Work Experience 
July 2025 – Present 2 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark, Fire Chief, Alexandria, LA 
Chief Kees manages the England Airpark/AEX fire program, managing 1 Assistant Fire Chief, 2 Shift Captains and a staff of 
12 personnel as well as all department operations. He responds to fire alarms and other emergency calls and deploys fire 
apparatus and personnel for control and extinguishment of fires and preservation of life and property. He supervises the 
training program and maintains training records. He also maintains a record of apparatus and equipment and coordinates with 
outside vendors for maintenance of equipment. He conducts quarterly inspections in accordance with FAA 139 of all fuel 
trucks, fuel farm, and self-serve station. He also coordinates with the Director of Operations regarding annual budget 
estimates and advises when Notice to Airmen (NOTAM) to FAA FAR 139 is required.  
January 2022 – July 2025 3 years, 6 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark, Assistant Fire Chief, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Kees supervised the day-to-day activities of the Captains and Firefighters. He managed and oversaw FAA and PIAL fire 
training for 2 shifts, including 2 Shift Captains and 12 Firefighters. He developed operational programs and procedures to 
implement best practices and maintain compliance with established standards. He conducted quarterly inspections in 
accordance with FAA 139 of all fuel trucks, fuel farm, and self-serve station. 
April 2020 – January 2022 1 year, 9 months 
Rapides Fire District 7/Ruby Kolin, Fire Chief, Pineville, LA 
Mr. Kees managed all operations and supervised 2 Assistant Fire Chiefs, 3 Shift Captains, and a staff of 20 personnel.  
September 2018 – April 2020 1 year, 7 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark, Shift Captain, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Kees directed a team of 7 firefighters and supervised daily ARFF operations for the England Airpark Fire Department. 
June 2013 – September 2018 5 years, 3 months 
Rapides Fire District 7/Ruby Kolin, Firefighter/Driver Operator, Pineville, LA 
Mr. Kees delivered structural fire suppression and emergency medical services to residents of the Ruby-Kolin community.  
July 2007 – June 2013 5 years, 11 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark, Shift Captain, Alexandria, LA 
As a Shift Captain, Mr. Kees directed a team of 7 firefighters and supervised daily ARFF operations at England Airpark.  
December 2003 – July 2007 3 years, 7 months 
Centerra Group, LLC / Rural Metro, England Airpark, Firefighter/Driver Operator, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Kees delivered structural and aircraft fire suppression and emergency medical services to the England Airpark community.  

Educational Background 
• Completed coursework, Fire Science, LSU-E, Enice, LA 
• High School Diploma, Pineville High School, Pineville, LA, 1999 

 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 5 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Assistant Chief/Training Officer – Kevyn Martin 

Assistant Chief/Training Officer – Kevyn Martin 
Summary of Experience 

Mr. Martin has 15 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) with over 5 years of 
supervisory experience as the Assistant Fire Chief / Training Officer and Shift Captain. He has over 9 years of experience 
serving as a Firefighter / Driver Operator in support of the ARFF program at England Airpark. He also has over 5 years of 
experience as a Firefighter / Driver Operator for the Ruby Kolin Fire District 7, in Pineville, LA. 

Certifications/Training 
• IFSAC Accredited: Hazardous Materials Awareness, Operations, and Hazardous Materials Incident Commander; Firefighter 

I and II; Airport Firefighter; Fire Instructor I, Fire Officer I, II, and III; Apparatus Driver/Operator-Pumper 
• NIMS ICS 100b, 200b, 300, 400, 700a, 800b 
• G-0191 ICS /EOC Interface  
• DFW Advanced ARDD Aviation Incidents  
• NREMT / LBEMS EMT-Basic 
• American Heart Association BLS CPR/AED 
• Qualified on all fire apparatus currently assigned at EEIDD/AEX 

Work Experience 
July 2025 – Present                                                 2 months 
Centerra Group, LLC England Airpark Assistant Fire Chief / Training Officer, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Martin serves as the Assistant Fire Chief/Training Officer where he supervises the day-to-day activities of the Captains 
and Firefighters. He manages and oversees FAA and PIAL fire training for 2 shifts, 2 Captains and 12 Firefighters. He 
coordinates with other departments at the Airpark and outside vendors. He also identifies departmental challenges, analyzes 
potential solutions, and implements strategic improvements aligned with department policies and goals. He develops 
operational programs and procedures to implement best practices and maintain compliance with established standards. 
April 2020 – July 2025 5 years, 3 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Shift Captain, Alexandria, LA 
As a Shift Captain, Mr. Martin directed a team of 5 firefighters, providing decisive leadership during emergency operations. He 
clearly communicated expectations and assignments while fostering a supportive and approachable supervisory style. He 
enforced discipline, upheld ethical standards, and maintained a culture of professionalism and integrity within the department. 
He supervised daily ARFF functions, cultivating staff competency through training, guidance, and performance development. 
August 2010 – April 2020 9 years, 8 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Firefighter / Driver Operator, Alexandria, LA  
Mr. Martin delivered structural and aircraft fire suppression and emergency medical services to the England Airpark 
community. He conducted rescue operations and provided non-invasive emergency care, including Basic Life Support (BLS), 
CPR, and AED intervention, in accordance with established medical protocols. He responded to hazardous materials 
incidents and ensured public safety through risk containment and mitigation strategies. He operated and maintained 
firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, and emergency response vehicles to ensure mission readiness. He also trained 
firefighters on the safe operation of emergency vehicles and equipment, enhancing team capability and preparedness. 
October 2014 – March 2020  5 years, 5 months 
Ruby Kolin Fire District 7, Part Time Firefighter/Driver Operator, Pineville, LA 
Mr. Martin delivered structural fire suppression and emergency medical services to residents of the Ruby-Kolin community. He 
performed fire prevention inspections and risk assessments to detect and eliminate potential fire hazards. He operated and 
maintained firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, rescue tools, and emergency response vehicles. He also executed station 
and grounds maintenance responsibilities and completed additional duties assigned by the Fire Chief. 

Educational Background 
• High School Diploma, Pineville High School, Pineville, LA, 2006 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 6 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Shift Captain – Bradley Eubanks 

Shift Captain – Bradley Eubanks 
Summary of Experience 

Mr. Eubanks has over 5 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) as a Shift Captain and 
Firefighter / Driver Operator. He also has over 3 years of experience serving as Part-time Firefighter / Driver Operator for the 
Ball Fire Department in LA. He currently serves as a Shift Captain for England Airpark supervising daily ARFF operations and 
a team of firefighters as well as emergency operations.   

Certifications/Training 
• IFSAC Accredited: Hazardous Materials Awareness, Operations, Firefighter I and II; Airport Firefighter; Fire Instructor I, Fire 

Officer I, II, and III 
• NIMS ICS 100c, 200c, 300, 400, 700b, 800d 
• G-0191 ICS /EOC Interface  
• NREMT / LBEMS EMT-Basic 
• American Heart Association BLS CPR/AED 
• Qualified on all fire apparatus currently assigned at EEIDD/AEX 

Work Experience 
January 2024 – Present 1 year, 8 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Shift Captain, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Eubanks serves as Shift Captain overseeing and directing a team of 5 firefighters, providing decisive leadership during 
emergency operations. He clearly communicates expectations and assignments while fostering a supportive and 
approachable supervisory style. He enforces discipline, upholds ethical standards, and maintains a culture of professionalism 
and integrity within the department. He supervises daily Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) functions, cultivating staff 
competency through training, guidance, and performance development. 

February 2020 – January 2024 3 years, 11 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Firefighter/Driver Operator, Alexandria, LA 
As a Firefighter / Driver Operator, Mr. Eubanks delivered structural and aircraft fire suppression and emergency medical 
services to the England Airpark community. He conducted rescue operations and provided non-invasive emergency care, 
including Basic Life Support (BLS), CPR, and AED intervention, in accordance with established medical protocols. He 
responded to hazardous materials incidents and ensured public safety through risk containment and mitigation strategies. He 
operated and maintained firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, and emergency response vehicles to ensure mission 
readiness. He also trained fellow firefighters on the safe operation of emergency vehicles and equipment, enhancing team 
capability and preparedness. 
January 2022 - Present 3 years, 8 months 
Ball Fire Department, Part-time Firefighter/Driver Operator, Ball, LA 
Mr. Eubanks delivers structural fire suppression and emergency medical services to residents of the Ball community as a 
Part-time Firefighter / Driver Operator for the Ball Fire Department. He performs fire prevention inspections and risk 
assessments to detect and eliminate potential fire hazards. He operates and maintains firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, 
rescue tools, and emergency response vehicles. He executes station and grounds maintenance responsibilities and 
completes additional duties assigned by the Fire Chief. 

Educational Background 
• High School Diploma, Tioga High School, Ball, LA, 2008 

 

  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 7 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Shift Captain – Christopher Ward 

Shift Captain – Christopher Ward 
Summary of Experience 

Mr. Ward has over 4 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) as a Shift Captain and 
Firefighter / Driver Operator. Additionally, he has over 22 years of experience as a Firefighter for the Cotile Volunteer Fire 
Department in LA. He currently serves as a Shift Captain for England Airpark, overseeing a team of 5 firefighters and 
supervising daily ARFF and emergency operations.  

Certifications/Training 
• IFSAC Accredited: Hazardous Materials Awareness, Operations, Firefighter I and II; Airport Firefighter; Fire Instructor I, Fire 

Officer I, II, and III 
• NIMS ICS 100b, 200b, 300, 400, 700a, 800b 
• G-0191 ICS /EOC Interface  
• NREMT / LBEMS EMT-Basic 
• American Heart Association BLS CPR/AED 
• Qualified on all fire apparatus currently assigned at EEIDD/AEX 

Work Experience 
November 2024 – Present  10 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Shift Captain, Alexandria, LA 
As a Shift Captain at England Airpark, Mr. Ward directs a team of 5 firefighters, providing decisive leadership during 
emergency operations. He clearly communicates expectations and assignments while fostering a supportive and 
approachable supervisory style. He enforces discipline, upholds ethical standards, and maintains a culture of professionalism 
and integrity within the department. He supervises daily Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) functions, cultivating staff 
competency through training, guidance, and performance development. 

June 2021 – November 2024 3 years, 5 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Firefighter/Driver Operator, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Ward served as Firefighter / Driver Operator delivering structural and aircraft fire suppression and emergency medical 
services to the England Airpark community. He conducted rescue operations and provided non-invasive emergency care, 
including Basic Life Support (BLS), CPR, and AED intervention, in accordance with established medical protocols. He 
responded to hazardous materials incidents and ensured public safety through risk containment and mitigation strategies. He 
operated and maintained firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, and emergency response vehicles to ensure mission 
readiness. He also trained fellow firefighters on the safe operation of emergency vehicles and equipment, enhancing team 
capability and preparedness. 
January 2003 – Present  22 years, 8 months 
Cotile Volunteer Fire Department, Firefighter, Boyce, LA 
As a Firefighter for the Cotile Volunteer Fire Department, Mr. Ward delivers structural fire suppression and emergency 
medical services to residents of the Cotile community. He performs fire prevention inspections and risk assessments to detect 
and eliminate potential fire hazards. He operates and maintains firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, rescue tools, and 
emergency response vehicles. He executes station and grounds maintenance responsibilities and completes additional duties 
assigned by the Fire Chief. 

Educational Background 
• GED, Alexandria, LA, 2013 

  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 8 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Shift Captain – Mitchell Schumacher  

Shift Captain – Mitchell Schumacher  
Summary of Experience 

Mr. Schumacher has 10 years of experience directly supporting England Airpark (FAA Index D airfield) as a Shift Captain and 
Firefighter/Driver Operator. He also has 11 years of experience as a Firefighter, Driver Operator, and EMT for the Ruby Kolin 
Fire District 7 in LA. He currently serves as a Shift Captain for England Airpark overseeing a team of 5 firefighters and 
supervising daily ARFF and emergency operations. 

Certifications/Training 
• IFSAC Accredited: Hazardous Materials Awareness, Operations, Firefighter I and II; Airport Firefighter; Fire Instructor I, Fire 

Officer I, II, and III 
• NIMS ICS 100b, 200, 300, 400, 700a, 800b 
• G-0191 ICS /EOC Interface  
• DFW Advanced ARDD Aviation Incidents  
• NREMT / LBEMS EMT-Basic 
• American Heart Association Instructor - BLS Provider CPR/AED, HeartSaver First Aid CPR/AED, HeartSaver Pediatric First 

Aid CPR/AED 
• Qualified on all fire apparatus currently assigned at EEIDD/AEX 

Work Experience 
April 2020 – Present 5 years, 5 months 
Centerra Group, LLC, England Airpark Shift Captain, Alexandria, LA 
Mr. Schumacher currently serves as a Shift Captain where he assists in the direction and participates in all firefighting 
activities at England Airpark and its facilities. He directs a team of 5 firefighters, providing decisive leadership during 
emergency operations. He clearly communicates expectations and assignments while fostering a supportive and 
approachable supervisory style. He enforces discipline, upholds ethical standards, and maintains a culture of professionalism 
and integrity within the department. He supervises daily ARFF functions, cultivating staff competency through training, 
guidance, and performance development.  
Mr. Schumacher also provides maintenance of fire/safety equipment and facilities and assists in the provision of general 
security on the Airport/Airpark. His other duties performed include Structural and ARFF training, CPR and AED 
Instruction/Certification, and inventory control. He conducts and supervises fire drills and instructs Fire Department personnel 
in techniques, methods, and safety of firefighting. He also conducts apparatus training and curriculum development. He is 
qualified on all apparatus currently assigned at EEIDD/AEX.  
January 2015 – April 2020 5 years, 3 months 
Centerra Group, LLC England Airpark Firefighter/Driver Operator, Alexandria, LA 
As a Firefighter / Driver Operator, Mr. Schumacher delivered structural and aircraft fire suppression and emergency medical 
services to the England Airpark community. He conducted rescue operations and provided non-invasive emergency care, 
including BLS, CPR, and AED intervention, in accordance with established medical protocols. He responded to hazardous 
materials incidents and ensured public safety through risk containment and mitigation strategies. He operated and maintained 
firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, and emergency response vehicles to ensure mission readiness. He also trained fellow 
firefighters on the safe operation of emergency vehicles and equipment, enhancing team capability and preparedness. 
August 2014 – Present  11 years, 1 month 
Ruby Kolin Fire District 7, Firefighter/Driver Operator/EMT, Pineville, LA 
Mr. Schumacher currently serves as a part-time Firefighter/Driver Operator/EMT for Ruby Kolin Fire District 7. He delivers 
structural fire suppression and emergency medical services to residents of the Ruby-Kolin community. He performs fire 
prevention inspections and risk assessments to detect and eliminate potential fire hazards. He operates and maintains 
firefighting equipment, EMS supplies, rescue tools, and emergency response vehicles. He executes station and grounds 
maintenance responsibilities and completes additional duties assigned by the Fire Chief.  

Educational Background 
• High School Diploma, Manatee High School, Manatee, FL, 2009 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 9 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

2.2 Employment Standards: Describe the organization's process for hiring 
employees 

Centerra conducts a phased hiring process consisting of recruiting, interviewing, and vetting to 
ensure the highest quality of candidates are identified and acquired for the England Airpark 
Structural/ARFF Services program. Centerra’s Recruiting Specialists, in concert with the 
England Fire Chief and management team, conduct both active and passive recruiting 
campaigns to identify local candidates for consideration in accordance with the SOW criteria in 
Figure 1. Passive recruiting techniques utilize online job forums and job boards that are both 
generalized job search engines, and those specific to public safety and emergency 
management personnel. Active recruiting will take place with corporate Recruiting Specialists 
and the Fire Chief attending job fairs and industry Conferences and seminars to assist in 
identifying quality candidates.  

All applicants complete an online application for the corresponding requisition to be employed at 
England Airpark as a Firefighter. A requisition for each category Recruit, Firefighter, 
Firefighter/EMT, Fire Captain, etc. is advertised to attract varying experience levels for current 
available opportunities. Applicants that pass the Applicant Tracking Systems automatic 
screening for qualifications, are forwarded to a Recruiting Specialist and the Fire Chief for 
review. This review identifies the highest qualified applicants that have been forwarded after 
automatic screening, which are then contacted for a thorough and extensive interview.  

All candidates for employment receive a panel interview consisting of the Fire Chief, Assistant 
Chief, and at least one Shift Captain. Candidates selected from the interview process are sent 
contingent offer letter of employment and move the vetting phase of hiring. The first phase of 
vetting includes a comprehensive background check of criminal history, previous employment, 
and motor vehicle reports to meet the minimum requirements of Centerra, the SOW, and CFR. 
If no issues are pertained in the background check that would disqualify a candidate, they then 
complete a DOT pre-employment physical examination and 10 panel drug screen. The next 
step is for the candidate to take and pass the candidate physical agility test. Once the candidate 
successfully completes all requirements, they are given a start date and begin the process of 
NEOP (New Employee Orientation Program). Once NEOP is completed the employee is placed 
on the schedule. 

SOW Qualifications  Centerra Requirement  
Age  Must be 21 years of age or older 
Citizenship Must be a US Citizen  
Education  Must have a high school diploma or equivalent  
Driver’s License  Must possess and maintain a valid driver license and driving history acceptable to the EEIDD 
Criminal Record  Must not have prior felony convictions  
English Proficiency  Must demonstrate both verbal and written English and ability to communicate with people 
Physical  Must complete and pass pre-employment DOT physical  
Drug Screening  Must complete and pass a 10-panel drug screening  
CPAT Must Complete and pass the Candidate Physical Agility Test 
Other  Meet the requirements of 49  CFR 1542 
• As a condition of continued employment personnel are required to complete annual SCBA fit testing  

Figure 1. Candidate Minimum Requirements in accordance with the SOW 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 10 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

2.3 Pay and Benefits: Demonstrate that the pay and benefit structure will enable 
Proposer to attract and retain highly qualified employees. 

To attract and retain skilled and experienced personnel, Centerra will offer base pay rates and 
annual COLA adjustments identified in Figure 2, all of which meet or exceed RFP, Exhibit B 
suggested figures. Further enhancing our recruitment and retention efforts, Centerra will 
compensate all Firefighters/Driver Operators above the mandated minimum wage in the first 
year of the contract. All employees will be subject to an annual cost of living increase as 
identified in the table below, at the beginning of each contract year.  

Position Pay Rate  COLA Increase  
Chief  $90,896/annually 3.0% 
Assistant Chief  $77,584 annually 3.0% 
Shift Captain/EMT $21.00/hour 3.0% 
Firefighters/ Driver Operators  $16.00/hour 3.0% 
Recruit  $15.00/hour 3.0% 

Figure 2 Contract Pay Rate 

Further enhancing our employment offer, Centerra will offer the following comprehensive 
medical benefits package to all employees. All incumbent employees will be eligible for benefits 
immediately. The costs borne by the employee for our benefits package, by plan, is detailed in 
Figure 3 and the coverage details for each plan in Appendix A – Centerra Benefits Plans and 
Coverage. 

Group Health – Centerra offers three medical benefit plans through Anthem for employees to 
choose from. There are two high-deductible plans in which Centerra contributes to an additional 
Health Savings Account annually, and one Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).  

Dental – Centerra offers a comprehensive Dental PPO through MetLife. The plan provides 
100% paid diagnostic and preventative services and covers large portions (50%-80%) for other 
restorative and major procedures.  

Vision – Centerra’s vision plan, provided through VSP Vision Care, provides coverage for 
routine eye exams and pays for a portion of the cost of glasses and contact lenses.  

Medical Benefit Plan  Employee Rate/Pay 
Period Dental/Vision Benefit Plan  Employee Rate/Pay 

Period 

Premier HDHP  Premier Dental PPO  

Employee Only (Single) $119.59 Employee Only (Single) $20.29 

Employee & Spouse $360.45 Employee & Spouse $58.09 

Employee & Child(ren) $239.21 Employee & Child(ren) $62.61 

Employee & Family $450.62 Employee & Family $106.26 

Standard HDHP  Standard Dental PPO  

Employee Only (Single) $0.00 Employee Only (Single) $16.16 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 11 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Medical Benefit Plan  Employee Rate/Pay 
Period Dental/Vision Benefit Plan  Employee Rate/Pay 

Period 

Employee & Spouse $170.98 Employee & Spouse $49.57 

Employee & Child(ren) $140.05 Employee & Child(ren) $53.22 

Employee & Family $210.14 Employee & Family $92.43 

Premier PPO  Premier Vision  

Employee Only (Single) $493.94 Employee Only (Single) $8.54 

Employee & Spouse $1,448.86 Employee & Spouse $16.55 

Employee & Child(ren) $1,020.18 Employee & Child(ren) $18.26 

Employee & Family $1,878.16 Employee & Family $29.16 

Standard PPO  Premier Vision  

Employee Only (Single) $302.12 Employee Only (Single) $4.90 

Employee & Spouse $815.73 Employee & Spouse $9.50 

Employee & Child(ren) $557.42 Employee & Child(ren) $10.48 

Employee & Family $1,012.60 Employee & Family $16.73 

Figure 3. Medical Benefits Plan Summary  

Short-Term Disability – Centerra offers short term disability coverage at a rate of $1.033/$100 
of covered weekly payroll.   

Long-Term Disability – Centerra offers long term disability coverage at a rate of $0.95/$100  
of covered monthly payroll.   

Paid Time Off – All full-time employees will be provided with the following paid time off benefits. 
Vacation seniority is based on the employee’s date of hire and earned on an annual basis.  
Sick leave is accrued monthly, regardless of seniority.  

Vacation  Sick   
Full time employees earn vacation based on the following 
seniority accruals: 
After 1 year - 96 hours 
After 5 years - 144 hours 
After 15 years - 192 hours 
After 20 years – 240 hours  
*Vacation time that has been earned but not taken will be 
paid to the employee upon separation of employment. 

All full-time employees accrue sick leave at a rate of 
up to 8 hours per month   

Holidays – Centerra recognizes 10 holidays: New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after 
Thanksgiving, Day before Christmas, and Christmas Day. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 12 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) – Centerra provides unlimited, confidential assistance 
for employee personal matters through MetLife. Services include Legal, Financial, Childcare 
and Eldercare Assistance, Identity Theft, and Daily Living Service. 

Life Insurance – Centerra offers a variety of Life/AD&D Insurance options for the employee and 
family.  Plans for employees, spouses, and children are age rated with coverages between 
$2,000 – $500,000. 

Other Benefits – Centerra offers a variety of non-sponsored, voluntary plans to its employees. 
Additional benefits plans include auto and home insurance plans, accident insurance, critical 
illness insurance, hospital indemnity insurance, and pet insurance. 

2.4 Sample Work Schedule: Detail the number of personnel and shift 
assignments required to service the contract and cover for vacation and sick 
time. 

Centerra will assign shift personnel to work a standard 48 hours on, 96 hours off schedule. This 
will require three shifts (Shift A, B, and C), as demonstrated in Figure 4. The 48/96 schedule will 
align personnel with most other departments in the area creating a consistent working 
relationship and training opportunities with counterparts from other jurisdictions. 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
Week 1  Shift C Shift A Shift A Shift B Shift B Shift C Shift C 
Week 2 Shift A Shift A Shift B Shift B Shift C Shift C Shift A 
Week 3 Shift A Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B 
Week 4 Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B Shift B 

Figure 4. Sample Shift Work Schedule  

The Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chief/Training Officer will work a regularly scheduled shift 
Monday-Friday, however, will remain flexible to attend and direct training; attend client 
meetings; and other functions as required as shown in Figure 5. The Fire Chief and Assistant 
Chief will maintain communication and be available for call back staffing coverage or other 
emergency response as needed.  

Centerra will staff 4 Firefighters/Driver Operators and one (1) Captain/EMT 24/7/365. In addition 
to the Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chief, a minimum of 12 Firefighters/Driver Operators and 3 
shift captains will be employed. In addition, Centerra will employ at minimum 4 part time/flex 
employees to ensure coverage for sick time, vacations time, etc.  

Position # of Personnel  Shift  
Chief  1 full-time Monday – Friday  
Assistant Chief/Trainer 1 full-time Monday – Friday  
Shift Captain/EMT A 1 full-time Shift A 
Firefighters/ Driver Operators A 4 full-time Shift A 
Shift Captain/EMT B 1 full-time Shift B 
Firefighters/ Driver Operators B 4 full-time Shift B 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 13 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Position # of Personnel  Shift  
Shift Captain/EMT C 1 full-time Shift C 
Firefighters/ Driver Operators C 4 full-time Shift C 
Firefighters/ Driver Operators  4 part-time/flex personnel As Needed  

Figure 5. Staffing Matrix 

3 OPERATIONS PLAN 

3.1 Describe the Proposer’s Structural/ARFF Training Curriculum and 
Recordkeeping 

Centerra’s structural and ARFF training curriculum was developed based on NFPA standards 
and uses a combination of coursework including: International Fire Service Training Association 
(IFSTA), Jones & Bartlett, NEMT/LBEMS Scope of Practice and Standards, FAA Guidelines, 
Circular, USAF T/O, and locally developed programs aligning with national and LSU -FETI 
standard for testing and certification though the IFSAC/Proboard. All curriculums meet or 
exceed the requirements of PIAL and the FAA standards. Figure 6 demonstrates the curriculum 
standards for corresponding subject matter that Centerra uses to qualify personnel. 
  

Training Subject Matter  Curriculum Standards 
Aircraft Rescue and 
Firefighting (ARFF) 

NFPA 1003/ARFF (IFSTA ARFF Curriculum 6th Edition, FAA Part 139 and associated 
Advisory Circulars  

Firefighter 1 / 2 NFPA Standard 1001 and PIAL guidelines  
Driver/Operator  NFPA Standard 1002 and PIAL guidelines 
Fire Officer  NFPA Standard 1041 and PIAL guidelines 
Fire Instructor  NFPA Standard 1041 and PIAL guidelines 
Fire Inspector  NFPA Standard 1031 and PIAL guidelines 
Incident Safety Officer  NFPA Standard 1521 
Public Fire Educator  NFPA Standards 1041, 1035, and PIAL guidelines 
Cause & Origin NFPA Standards 1033, 1021, and PIAL guidelines 
Incident Management FEMA (current requirements NIMS 100, 200, 300, 400, 700, 800) 
CPR/AED American Heart Association and Local Protocols 
Medical (EMR) Jones and Bartlett Emergency Responder, LBEMS Standard of Care and Local Protocols 

Figure 6. Structural and ARFF Training Curriculum  

Utilizing these standards Centerra has developed a comprehensive training plan customized 
specifically for England Airpark, incorporating all regulatory required courses in addition to 
locally specific training and employer specific training. The training plan is composed of five 
functional categories consisting of over 70 individual courses and drills.  
 
Training curriculum categories include FAA Training, Medical/CPR Training, Company 
Training/Structural Fire Training, Drills, and employer specific training. In addition to initial 
training and certification for new hire/Recruits, there are specified monthly, quarterly, semi-
annual, and annual sustainment requirements that are completed for select courses and drills. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 14 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

To provide a maximum level of readiness, and proficient and highly competent personnel, the 
training plan and sustainment exceeds that of a standard training plan for equivalent programs.   
All new hire personnel with partial or no certification are onboarded as Recruits. Recruit training 
consists of 366 hours of coursework, drills, and other requirements spanning over 70 individual 
action items in the five functional categories. Prior to assignment on a shift an individual must 
complete at minimum New Employee Orientation (NEOP), NFPA 1403 Qualification, and FAA 
ARFF Qualifications. All additional requirements must be completed in the first year of 
employment.  

Recruit training requirements are accomplished using a combination of our in-house academy 
and a local municipal academy. All skills-based testing completed by a local qualified Lead Skill 
Evaluator with certification written exams being administered by LSU Fire & Emergency Training 
Institute (FETI) meeting NFPA and ISFAC Standards. Our in-house academy is led by Chief 
Hamner, who has extensive experience in developing training programs and delivering fire 
training curriculums. Chief Kees has provided instruction to Louisiana State University and 
various other college institutions and agencies, and previously served as a Training Officer and 
Approved Skills Examiner in the State of Texas. Supporting Chief Kees are 6 additional qualified 
instructors, providing instruction in various subject areas.  

Once Recruit Training is completed our training program includes 16 hours of monthly, 55 hours 
of quarterly, 187 hours of semi-annual, and 464 hours of annual training and drills to meet both 
regulatory requirements and ensure the highest benchmark of staff knowledge and capabilities.  

All recordkeeping for training delivered is archived electronically on Emergency Reporting 
and/or Firehouse Software, and in hard copy format locally as a back-up. FAA associated 
records additionally kept in electronic and hard copy spreadsheets, and individual logs as per 
FAA guidance and preference. All recordkeeping and files are internally audited on monthly, 
quarterly, and annual basis as part of our program quality control function. This internal audit 
further assures compliance and preparedness for external audits by associated regulatory 
bodies (FAA and PIAL).  

3.2 Describe the safety and training programs the organization has for its 
employees to ensure compliance with Part 139 and PIAL Standards. 

Centerra has developed a comprehensive safety and training program to ensure compliance 
with FAR Part 139, NAS 3306, NFPA, OSHA, and PIAL standards. The training program is 
comprised of four functional categories to meet various regulatory requirements and exceeds 
the FAA requirements by providing required training twice a year.  

Courses are delivered during initial employee training and depending on the requirement 
refresher training is conducted monthly, quarterly, semi-annual, and/or annually to meet the 
regulatory framework requirement. Figure 7 details the training topics with corresponding 
regulatory requirement, as well as our schedule of training frequency and hours of training 
conducted, respective of each topic.  

The training program is audited annually by the Fire Chief to ensure any new regulatory 
required topics are incorporated into our program, and if existing topics have curriculum, hours, 
or frequency adjustments that would change our corresponding schedule of training.  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 15 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Topic 

Recruit 
Initial 

Training 
Hours 

Monthly 
Training 
Hours 

Quarterly 
Training 
Hours 

Semi-
Annual 
Training 
Hours 

Annual 
Training 
Hours  

Regulatory 
Requirement  

FAA TRAINING 
Airport Familiarization 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 

Aircraft Familiarization Boeing 
737  

1   1 2 FAR 139.319 

Personal Safety 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 
Communications 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 

Hose, Nozzle, Turrets 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 
Extinguishing Agents 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 
Aircraft Evacuation 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 

Adapting Structural Equipment to 
ARFF 

2   1 2 FAR 139.319 

Aircraft Cargo Hazards 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 
Airport Emergency Plan 2   1 2 FAR 139.319 

HRET Annual Recert (HRET 
certified only) 

0    2 FAR 139.327 

FAA Self Inspection Including 
Lighting, FOD, and Wildlife 

Management 

4    2 FAR 139.321 

FAA Fuel Inspection 2    2 FAR 139.319 
SAM Flight Line Operations 4    2 FAR 139.319 

COMPANY TRAINING / STRUCTURAL FIRE TRAINING 
Firefighter Safety & Health 2 1 3 6 12 PIAL 

Fire Behavior 2    2 PIAL 
Building Construction 2    2 PIAL 

Personal Protective Equip 2 1 6 6 2 PIAL 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 2  8 8 2 PIAL 

Ropes & Knots 2    2 PIAL 
Rescue & Extrication 2    2 PIAL 

Forcible Entry 2    2 PIAL 
Ground Ladders 2    2 PIAL 

Ventilation 2    2 PIAL 
Water Supply 2    2 PIAL 

Fire Hose 2    2 PIAL 
Fire Streams 2    2 PIAL 

Fire Control and Tactics 2    2 PIAL 
Fire Detection, Alarms & 

Suppression Systems 
4    2 PIAL 

Loss Control 2    2 PIAL 
Protecting Fire Scene Evidence 2    2 PIAL 

FD Communications 2    2 PIAL 
Water Supply Including Fire 

Hydrant Inspection, Flow Testing, 
and Preventive Maintenance 

4    4 PIAL 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 16 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Topic 

Recruit 
Initial 

Training 
Hours 

Monthly 
Training 
Hours 

Quarterly 
Training 
Hours 

Semi-
Annual 
Training 
Hours 

Annual 
Training 
Hours  

Regulatory 
Requirement  

Fire Prevention Inspection & 
Education 

40 2 1 1 2 PIAL 

SCBA care, use, maintenance 8  2 4 8 PIAL 
SOP, SOG, ERG, Local Policies 

and Procedures 
12  3 6 12 PIAL 

NIMS / ICS (100/200/700/800) 12    4 PIAL 
Haz Mat Awareness 2    2 PIAL 
Haz Mat Operations 2    2 PIAL 

WMD 2    2 PIAL 
Driver Operator Training 40  3 6 12 PIAL 

Pump Operations 40  3 6 12 PIAL 
DRILLS 

Multi Company Structure Drill 3  3 6 18 PIAL 
Single Company Structure Drill 3  3 6 18 PIAL 

Night Structure Drill 3    9 PIAL 
ARFF Day Drill 3  2 12 24 FAR 139.319 

ARFF Night Drill 3  2 12 24 FAR 139.319 
Automatic Aid Training/Drill 3  3 6 12 PIAL 

ADDITIONAL TRAINIG (CAPTAIN AND ABOVE) 
Officer Development 0 2  6 12 PIAL 

Public Educator 0    10 PIAL 
ADDITIONAL TRAINIG (CHIEF AND ASSISTANT CHIEF) 

Fire Cause & Origin 0    10 NFPA 
1033/PIAL 

Figure 7. Safety and Training Programs 

In addition to our regular schedule of training courses and drills, all personnel complete Self-
Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) fit testing and a DOT 10-panel drug screen annually to 
meet regulatory requirements.  

FAA/NFPA/OSHA Compliance Mechanisms. Centerra maintains compliance with 
NFPA/FAA/OSHA/DODI through the implementation of our FESAP and compliance plan. 
Responsibilities are clearly assigned to our Fire Chief/Safety Officer, FES Director, and Risk 
Management Staff Analyst, who oversee the compliance plan. The plan includes regular audits 
to identify and address any deviations from or new requirements set forth by the NFPA, FAA, 
OSHA, and DoD. We keep ourselves informed by subscribing to different newsletters and 
publications, attending various conferences and seminars, and maintaining membership in 
relevant agencies such as FES and Safety Forums. We regularly update our training and 
awareness programs to ensure that all employees are knowledgeable about the applicable 
requirements and regulations set forth by NFPA, FAA, OSHA, and DODI. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 17 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

3.3 Provide copies of Incident and Report writing forms to be used by Proposer 
Centerra uses the National Fire Incident Reporting Systems (NFIRS) Incident Reports (#1-11). 
The standardized reports are available on Emergency Reporting software, and electronically 
forwarded to the State Fire Marshalls office and National Fire Administration. Copies of the 
reports are archived and can be accessed for reference at any time.  

Please see attached Appendix B for samples of these reports.  

3.4 Provide list of additional services for the EEIDD’s consideration, which shall 
be provided at no additional cost to enhance current services. 

The following services will be provided by Centerra in addition to the SOW required services, at 
no additional cost, to further enhance the program and value added to EEID.  

1. Perform field level maintenance on Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (cost savings) 

2. Perform field maintenance and air sample monitor on SCBA compressor (cost savings) 

3. Perform monthly foam refractometer testing and dry chemical agent fluffing as well as 
refractometer testing prior to any transfer of foam from storage to apparatus 

4. Pre-Fire Planning and Safety Inspections of all EEIDD buildings annually as well as develop 
building evacuation plans  

5. Monthly Fire Safety Inspections of AEX Terminal and other buildings as requested (including 
fire extinguishers and AEDs). 

6. Weekly and Monthly Inspection and Run up of fire pumps as applicable including the AEX 
Terminal 

7. Assist with scheduling, development, planning, presenting, and execution of the annual 
Airport Emergency Plan Review and Tabletop Exercise and Triennial Exercise 

8. Coordinate, develop and track Flightline/SAM class training for all tenants, contractors, and 
employees of the airpark, as required 

9. Provide Fire Extinguisher Training for the FBO and other tenants, contractors, and 
employees of the airpark as requested 

10. Provide CPR and AED training for tenants, contractors, and employees as requested 

11. Provide escort and tracking for fire extinguisher inspections, hood system inspections, and 
fire system inspections. Personnel also provide replacement of fire system batteries in lieu 
of using an outside vendor (cost savings) 

12. Install smoke alarms in residential buildings as request. Administer and track the residential 
Smoke Detector Program on behalf of the Fire Marshalls Office 

13. Provide tours and fire prevention programs for various school, organizations, and 
businesses 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 18 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

14. Participate in monthly dinners with residents of England Oaks (as COVID rules allow) 

15. Submit Purchase Order requests on behalf of the fire department operations and other 
departments (i.e. AED pads for terminal, fire extinguisher maintain) includes 
finding/recommending vendors, pricing, quotes, and follow up 

16. Provide outreach to other area fire departments including training relating to airport and 
aircraft operations  

17. Provide a Subject Matter Expert (SME) when required for all things Fire, ARFF, Safety, 
Medical, Rescue, and Haz Mat 

18. Participate in the NFIR/LFIR fire reporting system 

19. Assist with building plan reviews and provide guidance for fire and safety systems 

20. Develop and maintain a fire system impairment plan IAW Factory Mutual (FM) 

21. Develop and Maintain a “Hot Work Permit” system IAW Factory Mutual (FM)  

4 PERSONNEL POLICIES 

4.1 Equal Employment Opportunity Practices: Describe the organization’s 
efforts to have a work force that is ethnically and culturally representative of 
the local population. 

Centerra is an Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action employer. We uphold all federal and state 
civil rights laws. Our policy is to recruit, employ, promote, and ensure that all personnel actions 
are made without regard to race, religion, color, sex, age, national origin, disability, veteran 
status, ancestry, medical condition, marital status or other factors protected by law. Each year 
we prepare an Affirmative Action Plan that reasserts our continuing commitment to equal 
treatment for all. 

Centerra is committed to:  

• Recruiting, hiring, training, and promoting in accordance with the principles of equal 
employment opportunity 

• Ensuring all personnel actions, including compensation, benefits, promotions, demotions, 
transfers, terminations, training, social and recreational programs, and other privileges 
associated with employment are administered with the principles of equal employment 

• Respecting others and providing a safe environment free from discrimination, harassment, 
threats, and violence 

• Fostering a "Speak-Up" culture where all personnel should feel free to discuss concerns and 
raise questions about the work, they are performing without fear of reprisal 

Our England Airpark management team has developed a network of recruiting resources to 
identify local candidates, many with years of experience as a firefighter in the region.  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 19 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

4.2 Sexual Harassment Policy: Describe the organization's policy for responding 
to instances of sexual harassment by members of its organization. 

At the corporate level, Constellis, LLC and its affiliated entities (Centerra) are committed to 
maintaining a workplace that is free from the types of harassment or violence that decrease any 
employee’s sense of safety or well-being. All employees have a right to work in a climate that is 
predicated on mutual respect and trust that recognizes and embraces diversity, that prevents 
violence, and that values the contributions of all of its members while upholding their dignity, 
decency, and respect. Centerra maintains an Anti-Harassment and Violence Policy (HR-003) 
that details our organizations’ policy for responding to instances of sexual harassment.  

With regards to sexual harassment, the Company complies with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, and all applicable federal, state and 
local statutes. In conjunction with the Company’s Code of Business Ethics and Conduct, Equal 
Employment Opportunity (EEO) Policy, and Social Media Policy it is the policy of the Company 
that any form of harassment stemming from employees, supervisors, coworkers, vendors, 
clients, customers, or other non-employees, is expressly prohibited. Religious, ethnic, racial, or 
sexist jokes, offensive remarks, and inappropriate symbols or gestures all demonstrate a lack of 
respect. Derogatory references to religious, racial or ethnic characteristics, gender, sexual 
orientation, disability, or any other protected characteristic have absolutely no place in the 
interactions of Company personnel. 

The Company is committed ensuring that all personnel, clients, and third parties are treated with 
dignity and respect. The Company expects an atmosphere of civility among all personnel 
towards others all the time. For those instances where behaviors create a disrespectful, 
intimidating or threatening workplace, such behaviors will carry disciplinary consequences, up to 
and including termination. 

Definition. We define sexual harassment as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual 
favors, and other visual, verbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when this conduct 
explicitly or implicitly affects an individual's employment, unreasonably interferes with an 
individual's work performance, or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment.  

Reporting. Violations of the Policy are not tolerated. All employees of the Company are 
responsible for ensuring that no forms of harassment or violence occur by conducting 
themselves in accordance with this Policy and by reporting any prohibited conduct they observe 
being committed by other employees. The Company requires prompt reporting of all incidents of 
alleged discrimination, harassment, inappropriate behaviors that are clearly questionable and 
offensive in a professional environment, violence, threats of violence, or bullying.  

If an employee believes they or someone else has been the victim of any such incident, report 
the problem immediately to either their supervisor, the Human Resources Department, the 
Legal Department, or to the Ethics Hotline by calling 1-844-637-6751 or via the web at 
constellis.ethicspoint.com. Any Company manager, supervisor, or employee who knows or 
suspects that an employee is being subjected to such treatment or incidents must report the 
matter immediately to the Human Resources Department or the Legal Department. Failure to 
report a violation of this Policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 20 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Investigations. When a report is made as outlined above, the Company will undertake a 
prompt investigation as appropriate under the circumstances. During an investigation, involved 
individuals are required to cooperate and provide truthful and complete information. The 
Company will preserve the confidentiality of individuals that make a report under the Policy to 
the best of its ability as the needs of the situation permit. 

Consequences. Confirmed violations of the Policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination, regardless of the position or level of the employee. Managers, supervisors, 
or others who fail to report an actual or suspected violation of the Policy may also be subject to 
discipline, up to and including termination. Discrimination or harassment by a non-employee of the 
Company will result in action reasonably calculated to stop the discrimination or harassment.  

No Retaliation. The Company will not tolerate retaliation against any person who makes a good 
faith complaint of a violation of this Policy. It is a violation of the Policy for any person to engage 
in any form of retaliation. Retaliation is considered a very serious violation of the Policy that 
should be reported immediately, consistent with the Policy.  

Other Misconduct. This Policy does not limit the Company’s authority to correct workplace 
conduct which the Company decides is unprofessional or otherwise unacceptable, regardless of 
whether that conduct meets the definition of prohibited conduct as outlined in the Policy or 
otherwise meets the legal definition of discrimination or harassment.  

5 PROJECT APPROACH & TRANSITION PLAN 

As the incumbent provider for 14 years, Centerra provides EEIDD the lowest risk solution to 
operational readiness, providing an immediate risk-free transition of services. Our plan below 
demonstrates our continued operational readiness; a detailed handoff strategy to support a 
smooth transition of responsibilities; an emergency response integration framework to ensure 
alignment with EEIDD protocols; and a clear implementation timeline to maintain uninterrupted 
coverage. By leveraging its existing knowledge of the site, personnel, and mission requirements, 
Centerra minimizes disruption and reinforces confidence in sustained operational effectiveness. 

Operational Readiness. We initiate our operational readiness promptly upon receiving 
notification of the award. On day 1, we initiate our operational checklist, encompassing facilities, 
apparatus, fire tools and equipment, personal protective equipment, communication equipment, 
staff certifications and training requirements, current installation maps, facilities pre-fire plans, 
water supply systems, EMS equipment, EMS protocols, department standard operating 
guidelines, and department standard operating procedures. As the incumbent, we expect this 
operation to be brief and efficient. We are a risk-free transition prepared to commence 
operations on Day 1. 

Handoff Strategy. Centerra is committed to ensuring a cohesive, seamless transition of 
services ensuring all operational knowledge, training curriculums, SOPs, talent acquisition, 
employee training data, etc. is transitioned to a new service provider. Centerra’s Chief Kees and 
Director, Chief Tom Smith provide leadership during this phase and receive support from other 
corporate resources as needed.  



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary 21 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

We ensure any new vendor is provided with access to all necessary computers and software, 
along with a comprehensive understanding of their functionality. We conduct joint inventory to 
ensure accountability and serviceability of all existing uniforms, PPE, and station facilities and 
properly transitioned to the new vendor. 

An overview of this approach and milestones that shall be conducted are shown in the following 
transition timeline. For this plan, Centerra assumed a 42-day handoff to mirror the onboarding 
plan, however, will scale our exit milestones according to the timeline afforded. 

Emergency Response Integration. As the current provider, our emergency response 
integration will be seamless and immediate due to our streamlined workflows and optimal 
resource allocations already in place. We also already have in place improved collaboration and 
real-time access to all stakeholders and airport customers, as needed. 

Transition Timeline. As shown in the following transition timeline, we will begin our operational 
readiness checklist on Day 1. By Day 2, the checklist will be completed and reviewed for any 
potential revisions or additions that could improve our current operational readiness. The 
timeline is brief, as we are the current incumbent and have an effective management plan and 
operational rhythm that functions efficiently, safely, and comprehensively. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary     22 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

Transition Out Timeline  Day  5  10   20   30   40 
Activity NTP                         

Activate Phase Out team N+0                         

Meet with incoming Contractor N+3                         

Submit transition Plan to EAP Authority N+3                         

Weekly report of phase-out-activities submitted to EAP Authority N+7                         

Weekly Transition Meetings with incoming contractor N+7                         

Transition any new hire pipeline candidates to incoming contractor N+7                         

Provide incumbent employee training files/records N+15                         

Provide incoming contractor operational files(working/historical files) N+15                         

Provide site level operational details to incoming contractor N+20                         

Transfer site specific training  curriculum and SOPS to incoming contractor N+15                         

Conduct joint inspection of airport provided vehicles with new contractor N+15                         

Support  new contractor access to airport computers system and software N+30                         

Conduct Joint inventory airport auth provided equip with new contractor N+20                         

Retrieve Centerra owned equipment and uniforms N+42                         

 Milestone 

Note: Transition timeline is 42 days. Timeline is based on the agreement being executed on November 20, 2025 with 
commencement on Jan 1, 2026 per RFQ Page 8  

 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary A-1 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

APPENDIX A: CENTERRA BENEFITS PLANS AND COVERAGE 

 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary A-2 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

 

 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary A-3 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-1 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

APPENDIX B: SAMPLE COPIES OF INCIDENT REPORT FORMS 

 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-2 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-3 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-4 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-5 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-6 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-7 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-8 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-9 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-10 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-11 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-12 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-13 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-14 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-15 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-16 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-17 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-18 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-19 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-20 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-21 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-22 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-23 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-24 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-25 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-26 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-27 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-28 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-29 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-30 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-31 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 



EEIDD 
Structural/ARFF Services Qualifications 

Management Plan 

September 5, 2025 Centerra Proprietary B-32 
Use or disclosure of data used on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal. 

 



 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 

DATE:  
 
 
TITLE: 
 

 
EXPLANATION: 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED:  FINANCIAL/BUDGET INFORMATION: 

  Document/Proposal Attached  Title:  
  Term Sheet Attached  Number:  
  Financials Attached  Balance of Account:  
  N/A  Amount of Expense:  

  Amount Remaining:  
   

 
SUBMITTED BY:  COMMITTEE: 
Executive Director     Executive 
Deputy Director, Airport & Capital Projects     Admin/Legal 
Deputy Director, England Airpark     Finance/Audit 
Director of Finance & Human Resources     Economic Development 
Commissioner     Capital Projects 
    

 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

DATE: 

TITLE: 

EXPLANATION: 

ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED: FINANCIAL/BUDGET INFORMATION: 
  Document/Proposal Attached Title:  
  Term Sheet Attached Number: 
  Financials Attached Balance of Account: 
  N/A Amount of Expense: 

Amount Remaining: 

SUBMITTED BY: COMMITTEE: 
Executive Director   Executive 
Deputy Director, Airport & Capital Projects   Admin/Legal 
Deputy Director, England Airpark   Finance/Audit 
Director of Finance & Human Resources   Economic Development 
Commissioner   Capital Projects 


	1.2 Committee Agenda
	1.3 Board Agenda
	2.1 Executive Committee 11.12.2025
	2.2  Admin Legal Committee
	2.3 Finance Audit Committee
	2.4 Economic Development Committee
	2.5 Capital Projects Committee
	2.6 OW Mgmt Contract Selection Comm
	2.7 Board Minutes
	4.1 Sol Powerlines
	5 Sol Powerlines
	Sol Scapes Term Sheet 2025

	5.1 LaDOTD Grant H016643- South Ramp Expansion
	Fact Sheet_LaDOTD Grant H016643- South Ramp Expansion
	Fact Sheet_LaDOTD Grant H016643- South Ramp Expansion (Back up)

	5.2  Fact Sheet for Centerra
	2 Fact Sheet for Centerra ENG-LT7
	2 Fact Sheet Centerra Backup
	1 Introduction
	2 Staffing Plan
	2.1 Key Personnel Assignments/Responsibilities: Include a one-page resume for each key personnel who would be assigned to provide services at the Airport as well as the Corporate Management Representative.
	2.2 Employment Standards: Describe the organization's process for hiring employees
	2.3 Pay and Benefits: Demonstrate that the pay and benefit structure will enable Proposer to attract and retain highly qualified employees.
	2.4 Sample Work Schedule: Detail the number of personnel and shift assignments required to service the contract and cover for vacation and sick time.

	3 Operations Plan
	3.1 Describe the Proposer’s Structural/ARFF Training Curriculum and Recordkeeping
	3.2 Describe the safety and training programs the organization has for its employees to ensure compliance with Part 139 and PIAL Standards.
	3.3 Provide copies of Incident and Report writing forms to be used by Proposer
	3.4 Provide list of additional services for the EEIDD’s consideration, which shall be provided at no additional cost to enhance current services.

	4 Personnel Policies
	4.1 Equal Employment Opportunity Practices: Describe the organization’s efforts to have a work force that is ethnically and culturally representative of the local population.
	4.2 Sexual Harassment Policy: Describe the organization's policy for responding to instances of sexual harassment by members of its organization.

	5 Project Approach & Transition Plan
	APPENDIX A: Centerra Benefits Plans and Coverage
	APPENDIX B: Sample Copies of Incident Report Forms


	5.3 Fact Sheet for IGA RPSO
	5.4 Fact Sheet for Terminal Seating

	DATE_ED5: November 20, 2025
	Title_ED5: Motion to authorize the Executive Director to execute a lease between EEIDD and Sol Powerlines, LLC, for builidng #1433 located at 2109 Frank Luke Blvd. (Back up information forth coming.)
	Explanation_ED: Sol Powerlines, is currently leasing an office space at the Airpark and would like to have additional space to use for mechanic work on vehicles in their fleet.  Building 1433 meets their needs and is in close proximity to their office building.
	DocumentProposal Attached_ED5: Off
	Term Sheet Attached_ED5: On
	Financials Attached_ED5: Off
	NA_ED5: Off
	Number_ED5: 
	Amount of Expense_ED5: 
	Amount Remaining_ED5: 
	AdminLegal_ED5: Off
	FinanceAudit_ED5: Off
	Economic Development_ED5: On
	Capital Projects_ED5: Off
	Budget Title_ED5: 
	Balance of Account_ED5: 
	Sig 11_ED5: R. Hennessy
	Sig 12_ED5: 
	Sig 13_ED5: D. Broussard
	Sig 14_ED5: 
	Sig 15_ED5: 
	DATE_CP171: November 20, 2025
	Title_CP171: Motion to adopt resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute Sponsor/State Agreement No. H.016643 between the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development and the EEIDD for the South Ramp Expansion & Taxiway Realignment in the amount of $1,000,000.00 (One Million Dollars and Zero Cents).
	Explanation_CP171: The grant is supplemental funds from the DOTD Aviation Division.  
	DocumentProposal Attached_CP171: On
	Term Sheet Attached_CP171: Off
	Financials Attached_CP171: Off
	NA_CP171: Off
	Number_CP171: 
	Row1_CP171: 
	Row2_CP171: 
	Executive_CP171: Off
	AdminLegal_CP171: Off
	FinanceAudit_CP171: Off
	Economic Development_CP171: Off
	Capital Projects_CP171: On
	Title_Budget_CP171: 
	Text2_CP171: 
	Sig 5_CP171: R. Hennessy
	Sig 6_CP171: S. Gammel
	Sig 7_CP171: 
	Sig 8_CP171: 
	Sig 9_CP171: 
	DATE_CP2: November 20, 2025
	Title_CP2: Motion to authorize Executive Director to execute firefighting contract between EEIDD and Centerra Group, LLC., to provide firefighting services for England Airpark and Alexandria International Airport. 
	Explanation_CP2: The existing fire services contract ends December 31, 2025. Centerra Group, LLC, was one of three submittals to the advertised RFQ. Centerra Group, LLC, has provided the services for the airpark since 2011. The new contract will be for a period of 4 years with one 3 year option.

Centerra Group, LLC, has been an excellent contractor overall. FAA inspections and exercises have been satisfactory.

Agreement Year 1 (2026)     $1,790,324.70      Option Year 1 (2030)    $1,990,000.98
Agreement Year 2 (2027)     $1,831,073.50      Option Year 2 (2031)    $2,046,554.66
Agreement Year 3 (2028)     $1,884,628.19      Option Year 3 (2032)    $2,112,954.30
Agreement Year 4 (2029)     $1,938,102.20      TOTAL                          $6,149,509.85
TOTAL                                  $7,444,129.30
	DocumentProposal Attached_CP2: On
	Term Sheet Attached_CP2: Off
	Financials Attached_CP2: Off
	Number_CP2: 
	Row1_CP2: 
	Row2_CP2: 
	Executive_CP2: Off
	AdminLegal_CP2: Off
	FinanceAudit_CP2: Off
	Economic Development_CP2: Off
	Capital Projects_CP2: On
	Title_Budget_CP2: 
	Text2_CP2: 
	Sig 5_CP2: R. Hennessy
	Sig 6_CP2: S. Gammel
	Sig 7_CP2: 
	Sig 8_CP2: 
	Sig 9_CP2: 
	DATE_CP23: November 20, 2025
	Title_CP23: Motion to authorize Executive Director to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Rapides Parish Sheriffs Office and the EEIDD for the transfer of two EEIDD surplus vehicles. (Back up information forth coming.)

	Explanation_CP23: The IGA proposes the donation of two (2) used, surplus, and fully depreciated England Authority security vehicles to the RPSO.

In exchange for this donation, the RPSO will provide valuable in-kind services to the England Authority by striping and fully installing all necessary EA provided security and communications equipment into our newly leased security vehicles.

The cost of commercially striping the new security vehicles and professionally transferring/installing the specialized security and radio equipment amounts to thousand dollars. The RPSO will perform this essential work at no direct cost to the Authority.

This IGA reinforces the cooperative relationship between the England Authority and the Rapides Parish Sheriff's Office, which is crucial for overall security on the England Authority property.

	DocumentProposal Attached_CP23: On
	Term Sheet Attached_CP23: Off
	Financials Attached_CP23: Off
	NA_CP23: Off
	Number_CP23: 
	Row1_CP23: 
	Row2_CP23: 
	Executive_CP23: Off
	AdminLegal_CP23: Off
	FinanceAudit_CP23: Off
	Economic Development_CP23: Off
	Capital Projects_CP23: On
	Title_Budget_CP23: 
	Text2_CP23: 
	Sig 5_CP23: R. Hennessy
	Sig 6_CP23: S. Gammel
	Sig 7_CP23: 
	Sig 8_CP23: 
	Sig 9_CP23: 
	DATE_CP24: November 20, 2025
	Title_CP24: Motion authorizing the Executive Director to accept the winning bid from (Vendor/Company) in the amount of ($xxx,xxx) for the purchase of new terminal seating, and to execute all necessary documents thereto. (Bids to be received the day of the Board Meeting. Information will be updated to present at the Board Meeting.)
	Explanation_CP24: This investment is necessary to ensure the passenger terminal infrastructure meets the growing demands of our airline partners and the traveling public. The replacement of existing seating directly supports:

• Capacity and Comfort: The current seating capacity and condition are insufficient to accommodate the increased passenger volume resulting from the upsizing of aircraft by our incumbent airlines. The new, higher-capacity seating will enhance the passenger experience and optimize the use of the gate areas.

• Market Growth and Readiness: The project ensures the terminal is modern and properly equipped in advance of the launch of new service by United Airlines, scheduled for May 2026  which represents a significant economic development win for the region.

	DocumentProposal Attached_CP24: On
	Term Sheet Attached_CP24: Off
	Financials Attached_CP24: Off
	NA_CP2: Off
	Number_CP24: 
	Row1_CP24: 
	Row2_CP24: 
	Executive_CP24: Off
	AdminLegal_CP24: Off
	FinanceAudit_CP24: Off
	Economic Development_CP24: Off
	Capital Projects_CP24: On
	Title_Budget_CP24: 
	Text2_CP24: 
	Sig 5_CP24: R. Hennessy
	Sig 6_CP24: S. Gammel
	Sig 7_CP24: 
	Sig 8_CP24: 
	Sig 9_CP24: 


